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the fabric itself to bring forth an understanding evelvement of the ex~
ternal appearance of the structure up to the Civil War Period.
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fabric.
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tendents Frank H. Anderson and Joseph R. Prentice both of whom have
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The John G, Wilson Building, lecated in Harpors Perry Natiosal Monu-
ment, is ons of the two buildings ptill standing within the lower town
section that were bullt outside of the Hager Six fAcre Reservation.. Cone
stracted for use as a commercial establishment and yosidence it was later
to becoms an hotel or inn serving first the stageccach trade and then
travelers on the € & 0 Canal and the B&QMLMX From 1837 until
1868 it was in Covernment ownership and during the Civil Har was used
M tveipe shetionad §8 the visbaitys

When baili in 1826 it was an lmposing and handsom: structurs and
the sddition wmmtd in 183334 to the norihesst further enhanced
its fine lines. It has withstood thres dovastating floods of record
and managed to survive through several thoughtless man mads rencvations
of post pariod date,

While nothing but feeble indications romain of the first er ¢round
floor period arrangessnt muich of what s found on the two flocrs above

le Snell, £, ¥W,, "Historie Building Report, Psrt II, for Bldg,
Ro. 45, The Joha €, Wilson Building,” dated
Pabraary 27, 1959, pp.30-36,

2. Soldiey’s names, dates and messages weye found geribbled on the
wallse. Thesw had beon coversd over after the war with & white
coat of plaster and painied.



2
is substantially that which would have been in existence during the
Civil War yoars.

There was little yoom for any major changes on the exterior after
the restoration peried due to the confining topography and proparty
boundaries. Some later refurbishing of the perches, the addition of
soveral windows and a door and the gpplication of a tin reof are rele-
tively superficial features that can ke resterad te their proper status
without too much difficulty.

Not much can be determined respecting any cutmildings that may
have existed but the existing privy foundation appears to date back to
at least the time of the 183334 slterations to the main strecture,
The privy superstructure being of light frame construction prebably
rapresents a later replacement as it ceuld hardly have weathered any
of the major floods te which the town was subjected.

The rock escarpment, st the raax of the Wilson Building, was mwot
conducive to any dovelopmant but may have had soms ferm of simple lands
scaping. None of the steps that wers hewn out of the natural ook
hilleide behind other buildings alony Zhenandoah Otreet were found
back of the Wilsen Building.

Maay changes of a minor nature were eaaakntlym»mw
out the uilding®s life, However, the more isportant stages in the
svolution of the structure have been uged as a frasswork in studying
the fabrice The major phases were three and represent the first
thres ownsrships. |



1. As constructed by John 6. Wilgon, 1836,
2. Addition by Hrs. Ana C. Dtephenson, 1833~34,

3. Government ownership throuwgh the Civil War,
183768,

As originally designed the building was 50%7* long fronting en
Shenandoah Street and 35%°-4* desp. It was two stories and a garret
high with a geble roof running parallel to the street. The aite,
before construction was &n&th:od. was composed of a large rock for-
sation that had to be removed. This may esxplain why there s no
basement. The exterior walls were laid up in yubble fashion and com-
posed in part of stons takenm from the building’s dta.‘ Evidence on
the northeast gable shows that the outer walls were not pargeted
originelly.

The building was planned for mum purposes with the first
or ground floor divided into two stores of unequal sise. There is
some avidance that the latter may have been further subdivided but
there are not encugh traces remaining to gonfirm a definite arrange-
mant. At each end of the bullding on this level wers two fireplaces.

The two upper floors provided living quarters probably for the
proprietors of the stores below., A central hallway, 9%-2" wids, on

3. Bnell, C, W., “Historic Bullding Report, Part 1i, for Bldg.
Hoe “Q The John €, Wilson m‘u.' dated
February 27, 1959, ppedei.

4. M ‘ Pede



the second and third fleor levels ran from the Iyoat to the back of the
stracture with twe rooms on each side or four yooms on each fisor.
Part of the hallway was taken up with a stairwey serving all flooys and
on the sscond floor there was s door to the exterior at sach end,

The yooms to either side of the hallway on the secend fleor were
of uneguai depth from freoat to back occasiened by a buile-in cupboard
betwsen the fireplaces, Ihe cupboards are located in the rooms on the
Shenandoah or froat side of the building. The roows on the attic fleor
foliowed the gawe layout but did not have fiveplaces or cupbeards. All
rooms on the lower floors were amply lighted with well spaced and pro-
portionad windows. The attic level had thres dormsys on the front roof
slope and two on the year slope. The two attic gable windows in the
svuthweat gable show evidence of baving been edded in recent years.

The interior uﬂm. doors and mantsls oa the second flooy axe of fine
uality and tastefully esecutad.

A covered two tiered poreh on the fhenandeah Hiyset facade ran
the full im#tbmxauuﬂtmuamlmmmm
flovr and providing shade and protection for the doors and windows on
this elevation, An open porch deck ai the zear at the sweond fleoor
level provwided accese to & privy and ancther exit from the building,

The dormar cheeks were finished with clapboards end the roof was
covered with wood shingies. The chimneys from above the attic space
were constructed ef briek altheugh they m of stona baiow thie
point,



The interior walls of the sevond floor appesr to have been papered
from the begisning but enly paint could be found on the walls throughe-
out the remainder of the building: The mantels were painted black and
the rest of the trim was light tonee of off white and light tanas.

By April 1830, Hajor Stephenson had rented the upper floors ¢f the
original structurs and wes advertising the space as an hotel, Ho died
in August zm.s Somstism before July 1834 the preperty was houcht by
the Stephensons and the addition to the northeast milt, for on this
date Mrs, Stephenson and her sene-inelaw sdvertlised the "several new
rooms have been lataly adﬁé*.e

The addition wag & continmation of the existing structure carrying
cut the same yoof line and was mads fully as doap as iis parent strice
ture. It exteadsd 16%-07 to the lot houndary te the northeast asd again
it wag secessary tv reweve the natura!l rock ccoupylag the site. In
this case it was not coapletaly reduced down to a Fnlsh grade level
for the nertheast and back walls at thelr lower lavels are composed of
natural reck, Thie accounts for the bulkhead lald up in magonry on
the inside of the back wall of the ground level roem. The porch on

the Fhenundoak Street slevation was alse centisved in froat of the additien,

5. dSneli, C, W, ~Historic Building Report, Part II, for Blde.
Hoe 48, The Joha 6. Wilgon Building,” dated
February 37, 1858, p.l6.

€ Mﬂ, Pell,



The ground level room may have been planned for use as a stable or
for storage. No attempt was made to finigh it out and ne provisions
weyre made Ffor heating. Later day occupants, for as far back as they
can remember, say that it was weed for storage - particularly for -od.7

“he second floor was divided inte twe yooms, fromt and back,
separated by a single board partition, having an suterior door to the
respective porches. The two windows at this level in the northeast
wall of the ericinel struecture wars removed and their openings enlarged
to provide communicating doors betwsen the old and new portions. The
windows were then reused in the northeast end wall of the additien.

The back room had a large fireplacs, 5%07 wide by approximately
5%0% high by 2%~0” deep, which wae probably used for cooking. This
opening was reduced in size in later years and then bricked up and
the mantel removed. This room also had a stairway te the second floor
of which traces wore found behind a skim coat of plaster on the room’s
southwest wall. The stalr?s 1i7t was from the back of the bullding to
the front and may have served as access for servant’s quarters in the
twe rooms abovae.

The trim on the original casings of these yooms were patterned
after the work of the 1826 main strueture. The original flooring was
replaced by wmodern boards not too long age. Some lath found in the
ceiling measures 13%-0% in lengthi

7. Ygs. Bmma Bvans of Harpers Ferry told this to her grandson who is
amployed by the Monument. Mrs, Evans lived on the upper floors of
the building 67 years ace.



The two upper yooms of the attic were alse separated by a partitien
of single board thickness and while the roem at the freat of the build-
ing was plastersd the rear room was not. Light for these rooms was
wuppiied from dormers, one on the front yoof slope and one on the back,
and gable windows, one in cach room. The trim at this lovel wss simple
and undecorated. The present flooring dates back to the nﬂdof o
struction except for the patch ocvcuring over the formar or earlier
stair well,

u;-.mmmdmmawummnmu.
1857, Whlle in govermment ownership a number of changes took place
that were undoubtedly conditioned by the erestion of the adjacent Coons
Building to the northeast.

Whan the Coons Bullding was constructed in 183738 the builders
had to remove stone from their site and were forced to cut the natural
rock up to the Wilgon Bullding iline and in so dolng may have damaged
parts of the northesst wall of the 183534 addition, The irregularities
in this wall suggest such damage.

A staireay in the naryow space betwesn the Wilson and Ceons Builde
ings was constructed to serve the second floeor of the Coons Building,
probably when the latter bullding was built in 1837-38, When this was

8, 8nell, C, ¥,, *Historic Building Report, Part 11, for Blidg.
Ko, 45, The John €, Wiigen mtﬂw‘. dated
February 27, 1958, p.2l.



done it prebably behooved the Government to take advantage of this stair
by adding the second floor exterior door in the northeast wall of the
Stephenson addition. The materials and metheds of construction used in
this dooy and the adjscent window to the northwest of it show that they
were added at the same time, The window was made necessary because the
newly constructed Coons Bullding cut down the smount of light admitted
to the second floor back room of the Stephengon addition, Later in 1845-48,
when the third floor was added te the Uoons Building by the Masons, the
above mentioned exterior stairs was extended to provide a means of on-
trance to the Masenic Hall. The stairs as exitended ent across the last
meationed window which would not have been the case if the stairway had
mmmmnmunummwmunu.w
covering the mu»m anw. It would have besn move liksly that
the window would have been reduced in bajght to accomodate the stairway
or not put in at all becalss of a lack of privacy,

Un the interier of %ho structure the originsl division of space in
the addition was sliered somewhat by the rearrangement in location of
the stairway betwsen the seound and third floors. This change oreated
two rooms at the attic lovel opening off a hallway. The front dormar
lighted the hallway making it necessary to borrow licht from ths halle
way to light the fromt room, This was accosplished by placiag a window

9. Gneli, C. W, “Historic Building Report, Part II, for Sldy,
Fo. 44, The Fhilipy Coons Ballding,” dated
March a. 1'“. Pede



in the partition between the hall and front rooms It is balieved that
the windows between the attic rooms of the original structure were
added at this time mot only for improving the lighting ket to provide
cross ventilation, '

Mummmmmmml?amaumumm
and a warehouse for military suppiies, This is supported by the
soldier®s sovawls found on the partition on the third floor of the addi-
tion and on 2 partiticn on the second floor hallway of the original
portion of the structure,

18, 8nell, C. W., "Higtoric Building Eeport, Part II, for Bldg.
Ho, 45, The Jm Ge Wilson Bullding,” dated
Pebruary 27, 1958, p.31,
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CRIGIEAL COHDITIONS

Host of the original structure as built by John €. Wilson remsins
in place with the exception of the exterior porches that were subjected
to flood damage and the interior partiticns on the first fleer that
were rearrvanged and removed during the tenancy of a leng list of
succueding store keepers.

The northwest exterior wall at the rear of the structure was damaged
in late ysars and the repairs sade at the time do not appear structurally
sound.

Hud seams or cleavege planes in the escarpment behind the structure
left hugh stone strata polsed above the seams with a poteniial for siide
ing into the structure. At some undetermined date large steel rods lover
three inches in dismeter and square bars up te two and a quarter inches
in width) were set in holes drilled inte the lowsr stratum protruding
snough to back up long steel plates (up to four and thres eighths inches
in width and two and an eighth inches in thickness) that were designed
to hold back the stratum sbove. The steel work has corveded vonsiderably.

The exterior pargeting has besn patched with medern materials in a
sunber of plaves spolling the general texture of the wall surfaces. Most
of the original exterier window frames have held up over the years
althouch some of the sash have been reglased with modern glass.
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The present tin roof has Procluded an examination of the tops of the
rafters but what can be seen from the garret space indicates that they
are probably in good condition. Some tightening up of the rafters at
their connections with the kick plate, collar beams and at theiy ridye
line will be necessary.

The architectural trim of the upper floors is, in general, in good
condition although sagging of the floors fellowing later day changes in
partition locations in the Ffirst fleor store rooms has caused racking
around the doorway openiags and cracking of the plaster in the interier
partitions of the upper ficors.

The flooring and joists at the first or ground floor level are
migsing, Oome jolsts supperting the second floor level are retted ocut
at their bsaring points at the exterieor walls, lNost of the second and
attic fleor flooring resaing and outside of leveling up ite condition
is such that it can be rehabliftated.

The 1833~34 Stephensen addition received the most sipase but in
spiie of this a good portion of the peried materisl has lasted up to
this time, However, the second floor flooring was removed and replacsd
with recent modern flooring. It was mot particularly well mainteined
and has a shoddy appearance. The firet fleor may have been used as a
stable earlier followed by use as a coal storage sres and as a conse-
quence was naver complestely finfshed on the Interior. The present
stairs to the sacond floor are maksshift and are of no wvalue.
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The northeast exterior masonry wall is in poor structural condition
at ite base where a part of the wall is composed of the natural bed rock
and where some of the stones have fallen out where the natural reck and
the masenry work join.

The axterior porches were altered many times, most likely after
every flood of major proportions. In their rebuilding they reflect
the use of the then current materials and their styling. The present
treatoeat of the porch facing Shenandoah Street stems back te work
following the flood of 1889, About the seme time the two bay window:
appendages faving Shenandoah Street at the gyound floor leovel were
added te provide show window space for the first floor storss. A con=
ereate sidewalk was poured within the porch space at the ground lavel
presumably in the 1920%s.

A window at the northwest end of the southwest elevation at the
firet floor lewvel was enlarged after the Clvil War to provide an on
terior doorway end a window betwsen the chimneys was added for more
iight, The thres ground floor windows at the rear are composed of
materials and put together in & fashion to suggest that they are of
a post period vintage.

Protographs taken during the 1880%s show that the window in the
Stephenson addition at the second fleer level facing Sheaandoah
Streel was not in existence.
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An original window opening at the southwest end of ths rear wall

at the second floor lewsl, dating back to the Wilson construction of
the structure, was closed in with stons following & blasting mishap
whan a tenant attempted to remove some of the rock escarpmsnt at the
rear of the bullddng in the sarly 18007%s.

Logal old timers remesbor replacing the wood shingle yoof with the
pressnt tia mt.u

The present privy superstructure may poassibly date to the mn-
tion pariod mt 4t is move likely that it i & later day replacement,
As Flimay as it i# it would probably have been taken off its foundations

and brokan up bwv fleed debris.

The rear porch platform was yremoved by the Sexvice in 1856 after it
had been adiudoed as noneparied. Its compoasnts were late replacements
and hiad yotted out due to their smbedmest in the hillside behind the
structure, As & menace to the safety of the Fark visitor it was undoe-
sirable to leave it stending. A susber of photegraphs were taken and
thege ave in the Memument files.

Thie sams year the first floor fleorimg and feists were removed
aa they had completely rotted out and were insect infested. This pre-
cautionary meastre was taken to prevent further infestation of the rest
of the structure.
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When taker over by the Service the first floor partitions had loag
since beon yemoved producing a mag in the gecond fleor supporting jeists
and beaws. Tesporary sherisg was placed under key points and with the
use of jacks & progrea of gradual 1lifting back of the jolsts to their
eriginal pesition has been undertaken. |

The exterier wood trim was glven a protective coat of paint some
time ago and a general repair of the gutiers and downspouts was made,

The rotted wod seffit boards of the Shensndoah Street porch decks
ware removed as they had been fastenidd wilh thin wire nails that had
rusted through permitting sone of the boards te fell.
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it is preposed to use the Joha O, Wilson Building as & visitor center.
Sited across Shenandoah Street from the Monument parking lot its loeation
is ideal for making the initial contact with the park visitors and pro-
viding them with a general orientation of the arca. Detailed interpre-
tation of specific features would be provided at branch museums located
in other buildings within the Fonument.

For this purpose the existing first or ground fleor of the building
has been adapted on paper to provide an entrance lobby with a reception~
ist’s desk, an exhibit yoom to the southwest of the lobby and an audio-
visual yoom sertheast of the lobby in the 1833-34 addition for showing
an overall orientation slide prasentation of short duration io headle
peak visitation loads.

Because of space limitations within the bullding it is proposed te
furnish rest room facilities on the first or ground floer of the adja~
oent Coons Bullding sometimes known as the Nasonie Building,

The second floor of the structure has aix attractive well lighted
roous of ample sise. These could well be used for office space for per-
sonnel dirsctly connected with meeting the public. They are outside ef
the visitors’ circulation pattern and yet conveniently close to the
center of activity., The fromt porch would be sdvantageous as an obper-
vation point for staff sembers with a fine view both up and down
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Shenandoah Street including the parking lot. The third or attic fleor
would serve as space for emergency storage in case of a major floed.

For heating the Wilson Building, and cooling, it is recommended
that the plant be leocated next door on the second flooy of the Coons
Building on platforme above the highest recorded flood. Ffor economic
congiderations and for reducing the maintenance load the plant should
be designed so that it could heat or cool, not only the Wilson Builde
ing, bt the Coong Building and eventually serve the HeCabe-Marmion
Bullding immediately to the northeast of the Coons Building. A pro-
posal has been made that the MeCabeeMarmion Building be adapted to
provide an guditorium to take care of large specialised and pre-
schaduled groups that arrive by bus, railroad or otherwise. These
could be handled by means of this facility without interrupting the
noymal visitor flow pattern and alse provide the necessary space for
special programs or meetings both within and cutgide of the Sexvice.

The above ocutlineduses can be worked into the present building’s
structure with the lsast amount of disturbance to the existing historic
fabric.

Bel. Sradizg
Al present the width of the porch separates the buildiny from

Shenandoah Street and sometims in the 1920%s & concrete sidewalk was
poured into this area a few inches above grade level, Until restoration
of the porch is undertaksn it is not fo&dblo to remove any of this
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slab and until this ig doms it will not be possible to determineg if
flagstones or & wood deck was used during the restoration period,
Pictures taken in the 1880% show a wood deck in use.

To the southwest there is a yard sbout forty feet in width running
back from Shenandoah Street to the rook escarpeeat behind, Withisn this
yard there is a cistern that collected water froam the reof of the struo~
ture. It is proposed to finish grads and seed this yard space and pro-
vide a period cistern cap. Ho. evidence of any deseription has ec far
turned wp te indicate if this yard was enclosed by a feacs nor has
there been any sign any garden plots or stone walls forming terraces
within this yvard space.

At the rear on the hillside sbove the rock escarpment it is recons
mended that the underbyush be cleared away and the area cleaned sc that
appropriate cover can be planted to prevent srosion. Al present core
roded old stesl pins and plates hold back a large section of reck over-
burden above a mad seam in the rock sscarpment., Additional holes sheuld
be drilied and new pins ingerted to preciude any later tyouble arising
from movement of the overburden. This will require adequate shoring
while this work is in progress to preveat mishaps.

B2, Foxches

There were two porches duriang ihe period. The one on the
front of the budlding facing Shenandoah Street had 2 ground level deck
and a deck at the second floor lovel mwofed over by a watinvation of
the roof of the bullding itsslf altheough at a slightly lower pitch.


http://td.il
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The porvh was constructed of wood and all that remaine of the peried
fabric ave the joiste and beass of the sevond floor deck. fomes of
thess will have to be replaced bacause of their rotted condition. The
balance of the meaders new in place are of later origin and will have
to be replaced. The period railing, now gone, at the second floor
level was composed of four boards rusning o sdge horlsontally capped by
a flat board nalled to the top of the uppersost horisental rail. The
coluans of the lower tier were syuare posts with half posts at the
bullding wall. The columns of the upper tier had chamfered sdges and
suppor ted a bean that carried the porch rafters. The chamfers ran bee
twoeen the top of the columns and the top of the reiling and were cut
in & manner to give the columas o tapered appearances. The caps were
square and shallow and were intergral with the colusn material.

There was & st of stalrs at the southwest end of the poreh with
an intormediate landiug now cccupled by & efsler stalrway but of
later vintage. At the northeast end another flight of steps in a
straioht run originated near the base of the Masonle Hall stalrs and
ascanded toward the southwest. This latter stairs ne lomger exists
and will aead to be reconstructed.

The porch at the rear of the structure ran the full length of the
budlding and extendsd beyond the southwest end of the building to pro~
vide acoess to the privy. This porch deck was never ceversd or roofed
and was a step lower than the second fleer level, 2 set of wood steps
batween the privy and the bullding ren down to the side yard lowvel.
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The porch deck was of varyiny width dus to the rock outcyoppings to the
raar. The porch that was in place when acquired by the Service was abe
viously a later yeplacemsnt and was removed because of its hasardous con-
dition, A reconstruction ghould be sffected to provide access to the two
second floor doors at the rear of the struciure.

B-3. Quibuildiscs

Tha ounly remaining outhulldings on the grounds is one ocutdoor
privy. This small gtructure, 676" x 0%6%, say in part date back te
the period and will need refurbishing and seme restoration. It is set
on a stona masonry base 9%-0% high and 9%0” from the southwest wall
of the main house., The masenry requires ropoianting and the whole was
undoubtodly whitswashed.

o evidoncs could be found for any additional outbulldings but a
later archeclogical exploration may discloss the foundations of such
siructurss,

B~4. Soncrats

Por the proposed vigitor center on the ground fleor, it is
recommended that a concrete floor elab be poured thrvughout. There
bainy no bassment it ig proposed to bring the slab o & proper level
for the finigh first floor by spreading gravel fill o an appropriste
hoioht, Such a slab would not be subject to damege by floed and would
tend to stabilise the bases of the outer wails. A paper jeiant should
be provided at the junction of the slab with the wallis in case it
would ever become desirable to resowve the slab a4t a later date. Orain






